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The Wooldridge House is a six-bay, one and one-half story brick residence in late Georgian
style (Newcomb, p. 6l), located in rural Woodford County, Kentucky on the McCowan's Ferry
Road near its c rossing with the Bluegrass Parkway. The area consists of large farms with
land immediately surround the house in pasture. The house is characterized by rigid
symmetry, projecting portico with pedimented gable which contains a large Palladian
window and various Georgian and Federal style details. The original design of the

house has not been modified, save replacing the back porch with one which contains a
bathroom. This lack of modification of the original design can be attributed to the fact

that the house has not had a resident-owner since 1884. Leasors apparently never were
allowed to modify the design, nor was it a requirement to obtain leasors until the plumbing
was brought inside. The plumbing was probably installed in the 1950's. During the

winter of 1976, fire severely damaged the house, demolishing the second floor and the

back section of the roof.

Full dimensions of the house less the porches are approximately 44' wide by 40'

deep. The facade is laid in Flemish bond, and the masonry work is in excellent condition
wi th tight mortar joints over 80% of its surface. The nine-over-six pane windows have
flat brick arches as do the two centrally located doorways. Each gable end contains two
chimneys which project one brick from the wall. A simple box cornice with a deep bed
molding runs across the frontand rear of the building.

Clearly the dominant feature of the facade is the projecting, pedimented portico displaying
plain entablature-supported by fou¥ -columng. 'A ‘Palladian window with reeded trim and
circular corner blocks pierces the tympanum. Shutters are now missing. Most of the
shutter Bolte. (part of the hinge) ‘arestill intact and shutter hold-opens-of 4 unique wrought
iron design (n?t "S)” curved) remain in the brick near the second flogr wiPdows.

1eT0 20705000 wEoon sy
The portico is approached by three semi-circular steps of limestone. The sidewalk leading
to these steps is also unique. It is 4' wide,. paved with brick and curbed with limestone.
It presently lies below the grade and is totally covered with grass. Its length is over
100" and was longer; a farm road now cuts into the sidewalk's end.

Four large rooms contained by 14" thick limestone foundation walls on the outside and

12" thick limestone walls on the inside with 8' clear from floor to underside of joist,
constitute the full basement. Stones exposed to view from the outside are hand-hewn,

with strategic corner stones. One fireplace is located in the rear = right ~room of
larger than normal size, adjacent to one outside entry on the side with stone steps and
retaining walls (intact) and another which has since been filled with stone which led to

the rear of the house. Foundation for the porches were limestone, with the front portico's
still intact. Evidence indicates that the floor of this portico was also limestone. No changes
other than filling the one exit have been made. Stone walls are still straight and true; wood
lintels over basement windows need replacing although only one has broken. Walls show
signs of leaching and leaking considerable water, therefore exterior sealing is necessary.

(continued)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Arnold-Wooldridge House, apparently constructed c. 1810 by Lewis Arnold, a member
of one of Woodford County's early pioneer families, represents what has been described
as the ""late Georgian' style of the Bluegrass region. This classification is meant to
characterize the emergence of the Federal style from Kentucky's earlier, eighteenth
century, brick houses (Newcomb, p. 6l). In addition to displaying well-executed Federal
detailing, the Arnold-Wooldridge House embodies some rather unique elements. The
six-bay facade with its two central doors is not a charactertistic feature of this period,
although a similar 13 story structure believed to be of a slightly later construction date,
does exist in adjoining Jessamine County. Both buildings are six bays wide with two
entrances and a projecting porch with pediment containing a Palladian window. However,
the Arnold-Wooldridge House, unlike the Jessamine County structure which appears to
be a hall-and-parlor plan, is two rooms deep, thus giving it a roughly square massing.
Furthermore, the existence of such a portico not only indicates an-awareness of the
spreading influence of Roman classicism, but foreshadows the Greek Revival.

The interior, is. gqually 3s impressive in that much,of the.delicate Federal woodwork ..
remains despite the damage to the house resulting from a fire in 1976. Door frames are
reeded with circular.corner blocks as are the windews which reveal paneled, jambs.,

Chair rails and baseboards are also intact in the two front rooms. The south parlor contains
the most elaborate of the three surviving mantles, displaying paired colonnettes, oval
medallions, and reeding.

The area has remained rural, with large farms and many early houses characterizing the
countryside. Woodford County was established in 1788, the last of the nine counties
organized by Virginia just prior to her admission into the Union (Collins, p. 763).

Only two miles to the northeast of the Wooldridge House is Versailles, the county seat,
founded in 1792. McCowans Ferry Pike is one of the older roads radiating from this 18th
century town, and contains several 18th and 19th century buildings.

The house, commonly known as the "Wooldridge House, " is thought to have been built
by Lewis Arnold, following his acquistion of the land in 1800 from his father John Arnold
(Deed Book C~2, p. 432). This sale of 65 acres, which was previously owned by Joseph
Patterson and his wife Ann is confirmed in the will of John Arnold dated April 23, 1818
(Will Book F, p. 4l).

(continued)
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Four large rooms, each approximately 20'-6'" wide and 18'-6'"" deep with brick masonry
walls 13" thick where load bearing or outside and 9" thick partitions telescope the basement
walls. All rooms have 12' ceilings and therrear right room has a closed stair starting
at the back wall and going to the second level, with the interior basement stair paralleled
under. All four rooms have fireplaces with the one containing the stairs having a much
larger one than the other three. Outside doors include one from each of the two rear
rooms onto the now missing rear porch, and two identical doors onto the front portico;

one from each room. All outside :doors have 8 panels surmounted by four-pane transoms.
The windows, three from each of the front rooms and two from each of the rear rooms,

are 3'-8" wide (masonry opening) and 6'-4'" tall (masonry opening), simple framed, with
4" wood sills.

Woodwork is of exceptionally fine detail and remains in two of the four downstairs rooms
in excellent condition. Three mantels still exist in near perfect condition, are .all of
different designs, and are of very fine quality. The two front rooms contain exceptionally
well-executed Federal mantles. In the south room, paired colonnettes support a mantle
displaying oval shell-patterned inedallions. The central medallion is enclosed by rope
molding. The frieze is reeded, and a twining stem molding surrounds the fireplace
opening. Inthe north room, a similar mantle, also consists of paired colonnettes with the
central and end blocks containing diamond-shaped panels. Door jambs and architraves
are all reeded. Door archtraves are 63' wide with plain plinth blocks and circular corner
blocks. Window casings are similar with paneled jambs. Chair rails are all 43" wide by
2" with each room having a different, yet well-executed profile. Baseboards are between
8 and 12",

Original paint is an extremely interesting use of blue, cream, and green colors. The
front north. -~ room had woodwork painted cream-yellow with wood panels and carvings
highlighted with mint green striping one half inch wide. ‘The rear left' - . room was
painted soft gray-blue, but more vibrant that that which is normally seen. Cupboards
existed in three rooms, two still intact, beside the fireplace, opposite hand of the

window. These cupboards have very handsome four paneled doors (two sets) and shelves on
the inside.

(continued)
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The stairwell to the second level opened into a hall 63' wide, centered on the portico and
running the full length of the portico and half the depth of the house; approximately 28°.
The hall area within the portico has knee-walls 63' high with 21" of raftered ceiling
(measured with the rafters) and 3' of flat ceiling formed by a rafter-to-rafter ceiling joist.
The room terminates with the Palladian window approximately 5' high starting 6" off the
floor in the portico.

Two large roon¥:(17' x 17'-:8") one on each side of the hall occupy the second level. The
left -side room has a 3' deep closet with balances out the area taken by the stair. Both
rooms have 6'=8'" knee-walls and are without fireplaces although the chimney takes

13" x 39" out of the outside corners and fireplaces could have been in one of the rooms.
Between the chimneys are located two windows in each room located directly over windows
on the first floor. Second floor windows are six panes over six panes.

The setting of this rural site is particularly impressive, with trees ringing the house
separating it from open fields to the south and pasture to the north. The house sits

at a comfortable distance from the main road,on a slight rise. The nominated area

is established by the present legal boundary for the property, encompassing the house
and extending west to McCowans Ferry Road and north to Scotts Ferry Pike. The land
included is important to the visual qualities and historic agricultural nature of the site.
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The Arnold family was one of the earliest in Woodford County. John Arnold (1754-1818)
emigrated from Virginia to Kentucky in 1781, '"They came with John Craig and made their

first stop at Bryant's Station and were there when the siege took place in August 1782....,

Lewis Arnold, a son of John, the pioneer, evidently came to the state with his parents,

as he was present at the siege of the fort (Draper MSSS., lc.c. 245 as quoted in Railey, p. 269).

"From Bryant's Station or Fort, John Arnold and his wife moved to what is now Woodford
County, and settled at a small fort known as Craig's Fort.... Later John Arnold owned

a great deal of land in the neighborhood which he divided among his children' (Ibid., p. 269).
Lewis Arnold lived on the property until his death in 1847 at which time the property passed
on to his widow . in 1848 - . - - (Will Book N., p. 190). It was then sold to
Martin 8. McFall by George W. Arnold, son of the deceased Lewis (Will Book N, p. 190).
Upon the death of McFall, it passed to his widow. In 1874, the house and land was sold to
William H. Wooldridge (Deed Book 2, p. 266). It was apparently around this time the house
aequired the name "Prospect Hill," as indicated on a map published in 1877.

After Wooldridge's death in 1884, the house was used as rental property until recent years.
During the winter of 1976, the house suffered a fire and consequently lost the back half of its
roof and the two rooms upstairs. The two back rooms on the first floor were also damaged
somewhat by the fire, as were the stairs leading to the basement. The house was recently
acquired by James Ross, an architect, who wishes to restore it for use as his residence.
His plans call for faithful restoration of the front parlors, with the only new construction
consisting of a small wing off the back for the bath. The upstairs will be remodeled for
bedrooms.
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Railey, Wm. E. History of Woodford County Versailles, Ky.: Woodford Improvement
League, 1968, pp. 269-270, 317, (Originally published 1938). : S

Woodford County Deed Book B, p. 8; C, p. 58; C-2, p. 432; T, p. 427; 2, p. 266; 51, pp. 444,
22; 52, p. 460; 98, p. 110.

Woodford County Will Book F, p. 41; N, p. 190; Q, p. 550; Y, Item 7.
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Beginning at an iron pin on the center line of the McCowans Ferry Road marking

an intersection of that center line with the center line of the Scotts Ferry

Road, thence with the center line of the McCowans Ferry Road S O degrees 47'

E 525.4 feet to an iron pin on the center line of the McCowans Ferry Road, thence
leaving the McCowans Ferry Road 71 degrees 13' E 550.8 feet to a point corner

to other land owned by Matt T. Blackard, thence N 15 degrees 11' E 169 feet to an
end post in the fence line, thence N 5 degrees 0l' W 433 feet to an iron pin in
the center line of the Scoots Ferry Road and corner to the property of Matt T.
Blackard, thence with the center line of the Scotts Ferry Road N 74 degrees

59' W 554 feet to the point of beginning and containing 7.246 acres, more or less,
and being a part of the same conveyed to Matt T. Blackard by Powhatan Wooldridge,
Jr. and his wife, by deed dated October 19, 1954, and of record in the Office of
the Clerk of the Woodford County Court in Deed Book 51, Page 22, and a part of the
same conveyed to the said Matt T. Blackard by James E. Searcy and wife by deed
dated July 5, 1956, of record in said Clerk's Office in Deed Book 52, at Page 460,
the land hereby conveyed having recently been surveyed by William Hippe and

J. M. MeCreight, land surveyors of Woodford County, Kentucky.

Being the same property conveyed to Grantor from Matt T. Blackard and Helen C.
Blackard, his wife, by deed dated the first day of October, 1978, and of record
in Deed Book 98, at Page 110, in the aforesaid Clerk's Office.
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